1950

Provo City v. Department of Business Regulation,
Public Service Commission of Utah, and The
Denver & Rio Grande Western Railroad Company
: Brief of Petitioner

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF FACTS

Ninth South Street in Provo City, Utah, is a street running east and west from University Avenue to Highway No. 91, at approximately 5th East Street. It is the only street south of 6th South Street in Provo City, and has for

over seventy years been a public street, being constantly for that time used as such. The area east of the point where 9th South Street joins Highway No. 91 is densely populated, and the community is growing in that area. In the vicinity of the intersection of 5th East and 9th South Street, the tracks of the Denver and Rio Grande Western Railroad Company, along with those of other railroads, intersect 9th South Street. Approximately five hundred people are employed in the industrial area of Provo City located south of 9th South Street and west of 5th East Street, and a large portion of these employees live in the southeast residential portion of the city above Highway No. 91. These persons have always used 9th South Street as a means of going to and from work, and travel on that street has constantly increased.

In the autumn of 1942 and the spring of 1943, negotiations were conducted by the officials of the Denver and Rio Grande Western Railroad Company, hereinafter called the railroad company, and the city officials regarding the closing of 9th South Street at the point of intersection with the railroad company's right-of-way. These negotiations never culminated in an ordinance effecting the closing of that street. Nevertheless, the railroad company proceeded to barricade and close the street at that point and to enlarge its installation at that intersection. It is to be noted that at no time did the railroad company petition the Public Service Commission of Utah for an order in this matter. In the spring of 1945 the Provo City Commission began removing these barricades on 9th South Street. The railroad company secured a restraining order in the Federal District Court of the State of Utah, and that Court, after hearing the matter, issued a permanent injunction against

the city's removal of the barricades. The city appealed from this decision to the United States Court of Appeals for the Tenth Circuit, and that Court, in the cases of Provo City, et al. v. Denver & Rio Grande Western R. Co., et al., 156 Fed. 2d 710, reversed the District Court and remanded the case with directions to dismiss the action with prejudice. The United States Supreme Court denied certiorari in the same cases, 329 US 764, 91 L. Ed. 658, 67 S.Ct. 124.

Thereafter in January of 1947, the City demanded of the railroad company that it remove the barricade and place the street in condition for travel. The railroad company then for the first time petitioned the Public Service Commission of Utah for an "order that public convenience and necessity does not demand the establishment, creation, or construction of a crossing over applicant's railroad tracks along the line of 9th South Street in Provo Utah." The City answered, denying jurisdiction of the Public Service Commission, and alleging that the matter was *res judicata*. Nevertheless, the Commission assumed jurisdiction, held its hearing, and gave its order as prayed for by the railroad company. Subsequently, on March 1, 1949, the City Commission instructed the commissioner of streets to tear down the barricades and proceed to make 9th South Street passable for public travel. Notice of this action was given to the railroad company. The company again filed its application with the Public Service Commission, praying "for an order that public convenience and necessity does not demand the establishment, creation or construction of a crossing over applicant's railroad tracks along the line of 9th South Street in Provo City, Utah." The City appeared at the hearing specially on the 22nd of April, 1949, and

moved that the application of the railroad company be dismissed on the grounds: (1) that the Public Service Commission had no jurisdiction; (2) that there was no application before the Public Service Commission of Utah for the establishment, creation, or construction of a crossing over the railroad company's tracks along the line of 9th South Street in Provo City, Utah; (3) that the railroad company had unlawfully and illegally barricaded and closed that street; (4) that the street was and still is a public thoroughfare, and that the railroad company by its petition was seeking to have the commission close that street; and (5) that the entire matter was res judicata under the decision of the United States Court of Appeals for the Tenth Circuit, referred to above.

The Public Service Commission of Utah denied this motion and set the matter for hearing on the merits September 30, 1949. Provo City now brings the matter here on an alternative writ of prohibition from this Honorable Court to the Public Service Commission of Utah, restraining it from hearing the matter, and asks that this writ be made permanent.

It is the City's position first, that because 9th South Street has never been legally closed, the Public Service Commission is without jurisdiction to hear an application of this nature; second, that the Commission has no jurisdiction to order the closing of a public street within the limits of an incorporated city; and, third, that if 76-4-15, Utah Code Annotated, 1943, were construed to grant the Commission that power, it would render that portion of the statute unconstitutional.

I.

THE APPLICATION BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION IS A SUBTERFUGE TO AVOID THE ISSUE OF JURISDICTION OF THAT COMMISSION TO ORDER THE CLOSING OF A CITY STREET WHERE RAILROAD TRACKS CROSS IT. IT AVOIDS THE REAL ISSUE BY ASSUMING THE RESULTS.

The railroad company is before the Public Service Commission on the theory that the right-of-way of 9th South Street at the point where the railroad company's tracks cross it no longer exists, and the fee simple has reverted to the railroad company. It is on this theory that it applies to the Public Service Commission "for an order that public convenience and necessity does not demand the establishment, creation, or construction of a crossing over applicant's railroad tracks along the line of Ninth South Street in Provo, Utah."

Ninth South Street is physically barricaded at the point where the railroad company's tracks cross it. However, it is the City's position that the right-of-way for the street where those tracks cross it has existed for over seventy years, still exists, and that the barricading thereof is wrongful, without lawful authority whatsoever.

Moreover, we submit that this question is res judicata. The question of the legal status of that right-of-way was determined in the cases of Provo City et al v. Denver & Rio Grande Western R. Co. et al, supra, when the United States Court of Appeals for the Tenth Circuit reversed the order of the District Court for Utah enjoining the City from removing the barricades and making the street passable,

and the United States Supreme Court denied certiorari.

It is elemental law that where a case is once decided by a court, the matter is *res judicata* as to those facts, and the issue cannot be again raised thereon before another tribunal. The question, therefore, as to the existence of a street right-of-way at the point of intersection of the railroad company's tracks and 9th South Street cannot be properly before the Commission. That right-of-way has been judicially confirmed.

This important fact the railroad company conveniently ignores, and the Public Service Commission has shown itself willing to go along with the company. Having wrongfully barricaded a public street, the railroad company relies on that wrong to seek an order of the Public Service Commission to perpetuate it, and the Commission entertains the application! We submit that the Public Service Commission is lending its office to aid the railroad company in profiting by its own wrongdoing.

It may be argued that the particular theory on which the railroad company is before the Public Service Commission is immaterial, so long as it is clear that the Commission is acting under the grant of authority in 76-4-15, Utah Code Annotated, 1943, and has the problem of a railroad-street crossing before it for determination. This argument is specious for two reasons.

First, by entertaining this application the Public Service Commission places upon the City the burden of showing a need for a change in the legal status of the crossing. This is error, as the present legal status of the crossing, as indicated above, is already legally determined, and the burden of showing the necessity for a change should rest on the railroad company.

The second objection is more serious. By accepting the railroad company's theory that the issue is whether or not public convenience and necessity require the opening of 9th South Street at the point of crossing, the Public Service Commission has assisted the railroad company in accomplishing a piece of legerdemain whereby the jurisdictional question is changed from the power of the Commission to order the **closing** of a city street over a railroad line to the power of the Public Service Commission to decide whether or not a **proposed** crossing shall be **opened** over a railroad line. The importance of this distinction on the jurisdictional question we shall point out hereafter.

Suffice it to say, the City's position is this: 9th South Street exists in point of law where the railroad company's tracks cross it; the railroad company is in fact seeking an order, the effect of which would be to close the street right-of-way across those tracks; and the Public Service Commission is without power to order the **closing** of a city street where railroad tracks cross it.

One other matter bears consideration here. The very fact that the railroad company **now** places its application with the Public Service Commission, after engaging in protracted litigation through the federal courts, shows the transparency of the present subterfuge. Had the railroad company believed that the Public Service Commission had jurisdiction to **close** the 9th South Street crossing, why did it not petition that body initially? Indeed, the matter of jurisdiction of the Public Service Commission was argued to the U. S. Court of Appeals, the railroad company taking the position that the Public Service Commission had power only to determine and prescribe the manner, including the point of crossing and terms of installation, of a railroad over

a public street, and citing as authority therefor the case of *Union Pacific R. Co. et al v. Public Service Commission*, 103 Utah 186, 134 P. 2d 469. Having lost its cause in the form of its first choice, it seeks the aid of a second, and that second is willing to entertain the cause!

II.

THE PUBLIC UTILITIES ACT DOES NOT GIVE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION JURISDICTION TO ORDER THE CLOSING OF A PUBLIC STREET WITHIN A MUNICIPAL CORPORATION

We recognize the fact that a municipal corporation derives its powers from legislative grant, and that any power so granted may be removed by the legislature. However, it is our position that the legislature has given power to open, establish, or close streets within cities to those cities by Section 15-8-8, Utah Code Annotated, 1943, which provides as follows:

"They (cities) may lay out, establish, open, alter, widen, narrow, extend, grade, pave or otherwise improve streets alleys, avenues, boulevards, sidewalks, parks, airports, and public grounds, and may vacate the same or parts thereof by ordinance." (Emphasis ours).

It is further our position that this section was not repealed or altered by 76-4-15, Utah Code Annotated, 1943.

The Public Service Commission is presumably proceeding on the theory that 76-4-15(2), Utah Code Annotated, 1943, gives that commission exclusive power to abolish **any** crossing. A reading of that statute will disclose that it only gives the Public Service Commission exclusive power to de-

termine and prescribe the manner, including the point of crossing and terms of installation, of a railroad over a public street. The statute is thus construed in *Union Pacific R. Co., et al. v. Public Service Commission*, *supra*, which holds that the power granted to cities by 15-8-8, Utah Code Annotated, 1943, prior to the Public Utilities Act, was not repealed by implication thereby.

An analysis of the Public Utilities Act as passed by the legislature in Chapter 47, Laws of Utah, 1917, will indicate the intention of the legislature in this particular section. The title of the act is quoted herewith:

“An Act Creating a Public Utilities Commission, Defining Public Utilities, Prescribing the Powers and Duties of the Commission and Duties of Public Utilities, Providing Penalties for Violations of Provisions of the Act, Appropriating etc.”

The Act is divided into five articles: Article I is entitled “Creation of the Commission”; Article II, “Definitions”; Article III, “Duties of Public Utilities”; Article IV, “Authority of Commission over Public Utilities”; and Article V, “Procedure.”

76-4-15, Utah Code Annotated, 1943, was, in its original form, Section 14 of Article IV of the Act. The title of that Article is “Authority of Commission **over Public Utilities.**” (emphasis added). Section 14 thereof is entitled “Grade Crossings—Regulations.” From the title of the Act and of Article IV, there is clear intent to give the Public Service Commission control and jurisdiction over public utilities, including railroads; there is absolutely nothing to indicate an intent on the part of the legislature to give the Public Service Commission the jurisdiction and power to *vacate* a city street, or otherwise regulate the use of a city street

by the city. To accomplish the purposes of the Act, it is indispensable that the Commission have jurisdiction over railroad lines, including their crossing of each other and of streets and highways. It is not indispensable, or even necessary, to accomplish the purposes of the Act, that the Commission have jurisdiction over a street sufficient to order its vacation where a railroad track crosses it.

The question of conflicting jurisdiction between such a tribunal and a city arose in the case of *City of Chicago v. Hastings Express Co. et al.*, 17 NE 2d 576, 369 Ill. 610. In that case the defendants were found guilty of violation of a "wheel tax" ordinance whereby a tax was placed on vehicles operating in the plaintiff city. The defendants appealed on the theory that they were a public utility and were therefore under the exclusive jurisdiction of the Commerce Commission by virtue of the Illinois Public Utilities Act. The Illinois Supreme Court held that the city had the power to enact such an ordinance, and in treating of the question of jurisdiction of the Commerce Commission, the Court stated that the line of demarcation between matters within the exclusive jurisdiction of the Commerce Commission and matters subject to the control by municipalities lies between matters which are an intimate part of and of the closest connection with the public utilities service and transportation itself, which matters are within the Commerce Commission's jurisdiction, and matters which in no wise interfere with or overlap such control by the Commerce Commission, which matters are subject to municipal control.

We respectfully submit that, while the crossing of one utility by another, or the crossing by a utility of a street is of the closest connection and an intimate part of the pub-

lic utility service and transportation itself; the fact that a street crosses a utility line is not. Perhaps the Public Service Commission may regulate or forbid a licensed common carrier under its jurisdiction to use a public street where it crosses a railroad line. This may be an intimate part of and of the closest connection with the public utility service and transportation itself. But the regulation and prohibition of general public use of such a crossing is not, and the Utah legislature never intended that it be thus.

III.

A CONSTRUCTION OF 76-4-15, UTAH CODE ANNOTATED, 1943, GIVING POWER TO THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION TO ORDER THE CLOSING OF A CITY STREET WOULD RENDER THAT PORTION OF THE STATUTE UNCONSTITUTIONAL

If 76-4-15, Utah Code Annotated, 1943, were to be construed as a grant of power to the Commission to close a city street where a railroad line crosses it, then it is the City's position that that portion of the statute would be invalid. Article VI, Section 29, Utah Constitution, provides:

"The Legislature shall not delegate to any special commission, private corporation or association, any power to make, supervise or interfere with any municipal improvement, money, property or effects, whether held in trust or otherwise, to levy taxes, to select a capitol site, or to perform any municipal function."

This Court held in the case of *Logan City v. Public Utilities Commission*, 72 Utah 536, 271 Pac. 961, that the purpose of this section was to preserve broad powers in matters of self-government to municipalities, and hence, if the

delegation of powers mentioned in this section is forbidden to "special commissions," it would most certainly apply also to a body such as the Public Service Commission.

This Court further touched on Article VI, Section 29, Utah Constitution, in the case of Union Pacific R. Co., et al, v. Public Service Commission, *supra*, saying:

"That section of the Constitution, together with section 10[8], of Article XII thereof, above referred to, however, is indicative of an intent on the part of the framers of the Constitution to secure to cities and towns a large degree of self-government."

The question of the power of the Commission to order or forbid the **construction** of a street crossing over a railroad line is not before this Court (See Argument I above) and the City is not here assailing that power. The City's thesis is that where the public street **exists**, with a railroad crossing thereon, and the City has not vacated that portion of the street according to legislative grant of power, the Commission has no power to effect that vacation, and an attempt to grant that power would contravene Article VI, Section 29, of the Constitution. We take the position that a city street such as 9th South Street is a municipal improvement and property, and vacating of a street is a municipal function within that provision. Moreover, it has been held that such a street is held by the city in trust for the use of the public. *Keyser v. City of Boise*, 165 Pac. 1121, 30 Idaho 440.

The Supreme Court of California, in the case of *City of San Jose v. Lynch*, 52 P. 2d 919, 4 Cal. 2d 760, held that the opening, laying out, and improving streets and regulating their use are "municipal affairs." See also *City of Los*

Angeles v. Central Trust Co. of N. Y., 159 Pac. 1169, 1171, 173 Cal 323. It is true that California cities exist under constitutional "home rule" charters, whereas the charter of municipal corporations in Utah is found in acts of the legislature, but this does not affect the authority of those cases for the fact that the creation, regulation, and vacating of city streets are municipal functions as that phrase is used in Article VI, Section 29, of the Utah Constitution. If 76-4-15(2), Utah Code Annotated, 1943, were construed to grant power to the Public Service Commission to vacate a city street where a railroad track crossed it, then that statute would contravene that constitutional provision.

That section so construed would then be unconstitutional in another respect; it would constitute an invalid delegation of legislative power. The rule against legislative delegation of legislative power, with the exception in cases of municipal corporations, is so well established that it requires no re-statement. I McQuillin, Municipal Corporations, 2d Ed., p. 1102, Sec. 395. The power to lay out, open, vacate, or abandon highways and streets is a legislative power, which must be exercised by the legislature itself, or by the municipal corporations to which the power has been delegated, and this rule applies to the legislature itself, prohibiting it from alienating or surrendering this right and duty. State ex rel. Townsend v. Board of Park Commissioners, 110 NW 1121, 100 Minn. 150.

The Arizona Supreme Court, in the case of Menderson v. City of Phoenix, 76 P. 2d 321, 51 Ariz. 280, involving power of such a commission over a utility owned by a municipal corporation, stated the rule thus:

"It is true that the Legislature has very broad powers over municipal corporations, but under the well-

known rule these powers of regulation may not be delegated by the Legislature to any other body, but must be exercised by the Legislature itself in terms which are not reasonably susceptible of any other interpretation."

CONCLUSION

Your petitioner respectfully submits to this Honorable Court that the Denver & Rio Grande Western Railroad Company is enlisting, through subterfuge, the assistance of the Public Service Commission to close an existing city street in the petitioner city, and that the Public Service Commission, by hearing the railroad company's application, is lending that assistance sought; that the legislature did not, in the Public Utilities Act, give power to the Public Service Commission to order the closing of a city street where railroad tracks cross it; and that such a construction of the Public Utilities Act, giving that power to the Public Service Commission, would render that statute unconstitutional as violative of Article VI, Section 29, Utah Constitution.