1950

Provo City v. Department of Business Regulation,
Public Service Commission of Utah, and The
Denver & Rio Grande Western Railroad Company
: Brief of Defendant the Denver and Rio Grande
Western Railroad Company

Utah Supreme Court

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

ARGUMENT

The City here seeks a permanent writ, prohibiting the Commission from conducting a proceeding upon the application of the Rio Grande (R. 35-38) now before it.

The City's petition for an alternative writ of prohibition sets forth substantially the same facts as those contained in its brief. The defendants, by demurrer interposed herein, raise the issue of the sufficiency in law of the City's petition.

The office of the writ of prohibition has been defined by this Court as being a process by which a superior court

prevents an inferior court or tribunal from usurping or exercising a jurisdiction with which it has not been invested by law and to arrest it from exercising a want or an excess of legal jurisdiction and not to prevent or correct an erroneous exercise of jurisdiction. *Campbell et al. v. Durand*, 39 Utah 118, 115 P. 986.

No question of fact is or properly can be involved. The facts are presented here as a means of determining the issue of law. That issue, as we see it, is simply the single question as to whether the Commission has jurisdiction to entertain and act upon the application of the Rio Grande now before it.

The City attacks the jurisdiction of the Commission upon three grounds, namely: (1) that the application before the Commission is a subterfuge to avoid the issue of jurisdiction of the Commission to order the closing of a city street where railroad tracks cross it; (2) that the Public Utilities Act does not give the Commission jurisdiction to order the closing of a public street within a municipality; and (3) that there is a constitutional restraint upon the jurisdiction of the Commission. We shall consider the contentions of the City in the same order as presented by it.

POINT I

As we analyze the contentions of the City under this point, two propositions are advanced by it, namely: (1) the Rio Grande, by its application, has assumed that the Ninth South crossing is closed, whereas, in legal contemplation, it is now open; and (2) the Commission cannot assume jurisdiction because the issues which Rio Grande seeks to bring before it are *res judicata*.

It is recognized by all parties to this action that the United States Circuit Court of Appeals of the Tenth Circuit determined that the City was not estopped to deny that the street area of Ninth South occupied by railroad tracks had been vacated. No dispute does or can exist as to the determination of that court.

Equally clear, however, is the fact that the Ninth South Street crossing has been physically closed for more than six years. The public has not used the street area occupied by railroad tracks since May, 1943. In fact the public never has used the crossing which now exists. When the public last used this street area there were but eight tracks across the street. Now there are some twenty-one tracks, in or across said street, constituting a part of a busy freight yard, accommodating a large volume of railroad traffic. The public has never experienced the hazard and the danger to life and limb which would necessarily flow from the public use of this crossing, nor have the railroads experienced the effect on their operations of forcing this crossing open.

The Rio Grande, in its application now pending before the Commission and in exhibits attached thereto, fully set forth the pertinent facts and the contentions of the City theretofore made (R. 35-54). The Rio Grande has not intended anywhere in this long and difficult controversy to engage in subterfuge or sophistry. The form of the application seems to it not to be material as two propositions must be admitted by all: First, that the City has not vacated the street area in question, and, second, that the present street area has never been opened to a crossing of the railroad tracks and facilities which are now located therein. It seems

also to be equally clear that if the Commission grants relief as prayed for by the Rio Grande, the Commission will refuse to open for public travel a street crossing now physically closed, and the Commission will by its order close a crossing now open in contemplation of law.

If it be said that the Commission's order in granting the relief sought by the Rio Grande would have the effect of closing a street crossing now open in contemplation of law, then one of the essential elements which the Commission must necessarily consider in such a determination will be the fact that no public travel has ever been conducted over such crossing and that the public has never been subjected to the hazard and danger incident to the use of such crossing.

The test of jurisdiction after all is the power lawfully to deal with the general subject involved in the proceeding. The general subject here involved is railroad track crossings of a city street. The Commission is undertaking to deal with the subject by ordering the crossing opened or closed.

The form in which Rio Grande set forth the facts and in which it couched its prayer for relief before the Commission cannot seriously be contended to bear upon the jurisdiction of the Commission. The Commission's inquiry will be dedicated to a consideration as to whether from all the facts and circumstances surrounding the controversy public convenience and necessity require that the Ninth South Street crossing be made available for public travel. The manner in which the inquiry is instituted is a matter of form. The substance of the Commission's jurisdiction is found in the subject matter of the inquiry and what the Commission under-

takes to do. All parties are here earnestly endeavoring to determine the jurisdiction of the Commission in such a matter. If the City believes that question of jurisdiction may be more simply stated in a proposition which inquires whether the Commission has power and jurisdiction to order closed the street crossing in question, defendants are willing that the question be so posed and are not inclined to quibble over the form in which the application was presented to the Commission by the Rio Grande. Certainly the jurisdiction of the Commission will not depend upon the form of the petition or application brought before it but rather upon the substance of what the Commission undertakes to do.

The second proposition advanced by the City under this point requires more detailed consideration. The Rio Grande brought suit against the City in the United States District Court of Utah upon the theory that the acts of the City complained of by it estopped the City from denying that the street area in question had been vacated, the contention of the Rio Grande being in substance that the acts of the City were such that its position was the same as though the street area had been vacated by ordinance. The trial court in its findings so concluded. On the appeal to the United States Circuit Court of Appeals, Tenth Circuit, the same issues were presented. Judge Bratton who wrote the majority opinion stated the problem thus:

... The company filed proceedings to enjoin the city, the mayor, and the commissioners from proceeding further in that direction. Issues were joined, and the causes were tried to the court upon stipulated facts, documentary evidence, and oral testimony. Concluding that the defendants and all citizens and resi-

dents of Provo were estopped from alleging or contending that the street had not been closed, vacated, and abandoned as required by law, the court entered judgments enjoining the defendants from interfering with the barricades and from reopening the street. The defendants appealed (R. 16).

Judge Phillips, who dissented, in viewing the case in the same way observed :

It seems to me that the instant case is one where right and justice require a holding that the city is estopped to reopen Ninth South Street across the yards at the ground level (R. 22).

The result of the litigation in the federal court was therefore a determination that Provo City was not estopped by its acts to deny that the street area had been vacated.

What is the issue before the Commission on the Rio Grande's pending application? The issue thus presented, as we see it, is whether public convenience and necessity require the Ninth South Street crossing to be closed. Thus it is seen that while public rights were incidentally involved in the action before the federal court, the real issue there involved private rights between the City on the one hand and the railroad companies on the other, while the issue before the Commission, although touching private rights, is primarily concerned with questions of public policy.

The division of jurisdiction between the court and the Commission is therefore sharply defined and of peculiar importance in the case now before this Court. The jurisdiction of the Commission is in a measure much broader than that of the court. In proceedings before the Commission the

questions are primarily and essentially public questions. An examination of Section 76-4-15, U. C. A. 1943, which will be considered in further detail hereafter, demonstrates legislative intent that the Commission in acting thereunder should engage in considerations of a public character. It is therefore seen that not the rights of the railroad companies alone or of the City as such are essentially involved in the application now pending before the Commission but rather the rights of the public generally, which rights embrace not only those of residents of Provo City and Utah County but those of all persons who may be affected by the determinations which are made by the Commission with respect to the crossing involved.

Both the court and the Commission have been careful to recognize the jurisdiction of the other in the proceedings which have already been taken. Thus the federal court in its judgment concluded that:

4. Under the provisions of Section 76-4-15, subsection 3, Utah Code Annotated 1943, the Public Service Commission of Utah has jurisdiction, if it finds that public convenience and necessity demand the establishment, creation or construction of a crossing of a street or highway above or under the railroad tracks of the Denver and Rio Grande Western Railroad, to require the establishment of such a crossing and such crossing may thereupon become a public highway and crossing. This Court is not disposed to interfere with the exercise of such jurisdiction and power of the Public Service Commission either as to the Trustees or The Denver and Rio Grande Western Railroad Company, but on the contrary is disposed and will use its good offices to aid in the elimination of inconvenience to the public caused by barricading

of Ninth South Street, at the earliest possible time consistent with the war effort, by construction at or near Ninth South Street or University Avenue of some divided grade crossing when labor and materials become available therefor (R. 12).

and in its decree further ordered that:

. . . provided, however, that neither Provo City nor any of its officers, agents, residents or persons is enjoined from petitioning the Public Service Commission of Utah to exercise its jurisdiction, under Section 76-4-15, subsection 3, Utah Code Annotated 1943, by finding that public convenience and necessity require, and by ordering the establishment of a crossing of a street or highway above or under the tracks of the Denver and Rio Grande Western Railroad at or in the vicinity of Ninth South Street or University Avenue . . . (R. 14).

The Commission in its report in the first proceeding before it is careful to point out the area of its jurisdiction and that of the court where it observes that:

Provo City alleges that it is inequitable and unjust for this Commission to overrule a decision by a United States Court. This Commission does not assume to have any such power or jurisdiction. This Commission, however, is charged by statute with the duty of determining whether public convenience and necessity demand the opening of a road or highway across the railroad tracks of Applicants and is exercising that jurisdiction in this Report and the Order to be made pursuant thereto. Neither the United States District Court nor the Tenth Circuit Court of Appeals has passed upon the jurisdiction of this Commission in this matter (R. 32-3).

The rules of law which control the problem here presented are, we believe, these: Where issues of law are presented in controversies which are of an essentially private character, courts of law are vested with a primary jurisdiction for the determination of such issues. Where, on the other hand, issues which are of a public character and relate to questions primarily of fact, arising from some activity of a public utility, and are by statute vested in a regulatory body, such as the Commission, are for the determination of the Commission. A concurrent jurisdiction may thus exist in which courts are entitled to pass upon questions of law involving private rights and regulatory bodies, such as the Commission, are entitled to pass upon questions of public right involving matters of fact relating to utilities under their control. There are and may be certain cases lying in between the fields here suggested in which a court may have the right to take original jurisdiction but in which the jurisdiction of a commission, when once assumed, is complete and determinative of all issues involved.

An examination of the cases and text authority will, we believe, fully sustain the rules above announced.

The general proposition is announced in 42 Am. Jur., Public Administrative Law, Sec. 252, as follows:

In some circumstances, two remedies may be available to the same party for the enforcement of the same right, one in the judicial and the other in the administrative forum, one by virtue of statute and the other under the common law . . . There may exist a dual remedy, one in the judicial and another in the administrative forum, in a sense other than that just described. Some administrative agencies exist only

for the enforcement and protection of public, as distinguished from private, rights, and where an act constitutes a violation of both a public and a private right, the administrative forum may present the proper remedy for the former and the judicial forum the proper remedy for the latter.

The cases sustain this statement of law. Typical of several of such cases is that of *City of Oakland v. Key System*, 149 P. (2d) 195 (Cal.), where the court announces the principles as follows:

As previously stated, based upon the findings of fact, the court as a conclusion of law found that the use of the property described in the first cause of action "is a matter primarily within the jurisdiction of the Railroad Commission." Ordinarily this statement is correct. However, the jurisdiction is not exclusively with the commission. Questions of public convenience and necessity, and matters directly relating thereto, in connection with the operation of public utility franchises, are the concern of the commission; legal disputes pertaining to a continuance or cancellation of a franchise at the end of its designated period are solely within the jurisdiction of the courts. The cancellation of a franchise during the term of its existence for a cause specified therein is primarily a legal question and must be decided by the courts, but if convenience of the public is involved and continued operation is necessary, such interest may be paramount to the rights of the parties to the franchise, in which case the jurisdiction of the Railroad Commission is dominant and controlling. A restriction or limitation in one case may not apply under the facts of another.

Thus, in certain cases and as to certain problems relating to public utilities the jurisdiction of the commission is exclusive. As to other matters the regular

law courts have jurisdiction. In between these two well defined fields there is a somewhat ill defined field in which the law courts have jurisdiction unless the commission has elected to act as to the particular subject matter. If it has elected to so act the exercise of such jurisdiction ousts the law courts of any jurisdiction assumed by them. (p. 199.)

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